MINUTES
EMMET COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION
HARBOR SPRINGS, MICHIGAN

The Emmet County Board of Road Commissioners met in special session at the Conway Office on
October 7, 2024, for the purposes of discussing road issues with township officials from West Traverse,
Resort, Pleasantview, Springvale, and Maple River Township.

Commissioners Present:
Frank Zulski, Chairman Wade Williams, Member

Commissioners Absent:
Mark Hoffman, Vice-Chairman

Staff Present:
Brent Shank — Engineer/Manager Travis Horrocks — Engineer Technician
Lisa Kleeman - Finance Director

Guests Present: None

West Traverse Township Officials:

Supervisor - Jim Bartlett Trustee — Annie Mooradian
Clerk —Joseph Olson Trustee — Dave Green
Treasurer — Kristi Hollingsworth

Resort Township Officials:
Supervisor — Robert Wheaton Clerk — Rufus Welsheimer
Trustee — Holly Angileri Trustee — Al Welsheimer

Pleasantview Township Officials:
Supervisor — Ed Kuligowski Clerk — Debra Bosma
Supervisor Elect — Rocky Beydoun Treasurer — Robert Latimer

Springvale Township Officials:
Supervisor — Randy McCune Clerk — Pat McCune
Trustee — Kyle Ulrich

Maple River Township Officials:

Supervisor —John Eby Clerk — Tammy Gregory
Trustee — Art Beach Trustee — Stanley Wekwert
Treasurer — Nancy Salar

1. Chairman Zulski called the meeting to order at 5:28 p.m. and led the pledge of allegiance.

2. Roll was called.

3. West Traverse Township officials were welcomed at 5:29 p.m. with introduction of attendees.



Board of Emmet County Road Commissioners October 7, 2024

a. Road Report — Distributed in August, no discussion.
b. Road Project Discussion — Shank clarified the process for project development. Once he

receives a project request with the township’s budgeted amount to spend, an estimate is

built and sent to the township with a contract. If the contract is approved, the project is put

out for bids. If the bids come in under estimate, the project is recommended for approval. If

the bids come in over estimate, the township is contacted for approval.

c. Review of 2024 Projects — No discussion.
2025 Planned Projects:

Lower Shore Drive overlay for 1.25 to 2 miles.

Mooradian inquired on the plan for State Road from Franklin Road to LaCount
Road; Shank responded there is no plan for paving at this time. She inquired
about Tribal funding and Shank stated Brutus Road from North Conway Road to
US 31 is planned for 2025 and they may also be looking at Pickerel Lake Road for
future years. Hollingworth asked if the goal is to let a road go to a red rating and
Shank responded it is a funding issue. She asked if the township could pay for a
chip seal on State Road and Shank responded yes, it would be a good way to add
5-7 years of life to the road by sealing the cracks.

Mooradian inquired about sidewalks in the road right-of-way on Lightfoot Road
between Quick and State Roads and adding wider paved shoulders. Shank
discussed a maintenance agreement may be required for the sidewalks and trails,
but Mooradian stated it wouldn’t be maintained in the winter and others would
maintain it in the summer.

e. Maintenance Topics — None discussed.
f. Other Topics:

Public Act 33, regarding setting speed limits, had a new clause added in 2024.
Section 5 of MCL 257.628 states a speed limit may be set below the 85™ percentile
if an engineering and safety study demonstrates a situation with hazards to public
safety; but must not be set below the 50" percentile. The township submits a
formal request to the road commission and reimbursement for the required
engineering and safety study would be the responsibility of the requesting party.
Michigan State Police are still responsible for giving final approval on the change.
Bartlett discussed the history of townships funding local road projects and
inquired what would happen if the millage did not pass in the future; Zulski
responded it would be bleak as our Michigan Transportation Funding is going
down. Shank replied fuel consumption is in a downward trend since 2001 and
briefly talked about mileage-based user fees. Zulski discussed how Springvale
Township has an extra mil assessed for roads and that has improved their road
ratings. Bartlett stated West Traverse Township is in good shape right now and
they have a good relationship with the road commission.

Hollingsworth inquired about M119 bluff project and Shank responded we are not
involved in this project as it is in the city limits.

Page 2 of 8



Board of Emmet County Road Commissioners October 7, 2024

iv. Bartlett stated he received a complaint from the property owner on the north side
of Lower Shore Drive just east of the creek and Shank responded he did also, but
the guardrail was placed according to federal standards and this was through
tribal grants.

v.  Zulski suggested the township may want to send a letter of thanks to their county
commissioner and county board regarding the match given to the township the
past two years.

West Traverse Township officials left the meeting at 5:52 p.m.

4. Resort Township officials were welcomed at 6:00 p.m. with introductions.

a.

Road Report — Distributed in August and include new ratings for gravel roads. Al
Welsheimer questioned the accuracy of the report and Shank explained the ratings occurred
before projects were completed on Indian Garden Road and Stump Road and sometimes
there are issues with Roadsoft’s framework not getting updated. Al Welsheimer also
inquired about School Road; Shank will check into these issues.

Road Project Discussion — Shank clarified the process for project development. Once he

receives a project request with the township’s budgeted amount to spend, an estimate is
built and sent to the township with a contract. If the contract is approved, the project is put
out for bids. If the bids come in under estimate, the project is recommended for approval. If
the bids come in over estimate, the township is contacted for approval.

Review of 2024 Projects - Stump Road and Indian Garden Road both turned out well. Shank
discussed options for roads that can extend the life of the road by using treatments such as
overlays, without the cost of doing full reconstructs.

2025 Planned Projects — Shank discussed the benefits of getting the projects bid out sooner
for better savings and outcome of the projects. They discussed projects as follows:

i.  Angileri inquired about Old 31 and Shank gave them an option for an 18-foot
pavement by adding a little bit of gravel before paving it.

ii.  Wheaton inquired if an overlay would work on Upper Bay Shore and Shank
responded that is a better option than taking it back to gravel.

iii.  Wheaton discussed Resort Pike, adding two feet to each side of the road. Shank
stated you could trench extra width and base it in with asphalt then profile mill it
and place a wedge and overlay.

iv. Al Welsheimer inquired about the plan for primary roads and Shank explained
how much is received for federal aid and tribal funds for 233 miles. He inquired
about Intertown Road from Resort Pike to Cemetery and Shank stated a mill and
fill would be appropriate and he discussed a plan to fill the large cracking; the
shade is an issue but there is also structural failure going on. Williams Road also
has structural cracking.

v.  Shank discussed there is a micro mill coming in next week to plane down the
bump on Eppler Road. Wheaton inquired if that would work on Resort Pike on the
hill but Shank stated it would be a different machine to fix the bump Wheaton is
talking about half way up Hibbler Hill.

Page 3 of 8



Board of Emmet County Road Commissioners October 7, 2024

(o)
f.

vi. Al Welsheimer discussed Old 31 to Horton Bay Road, or Horton Bay Road to the
trailer park and using it for detours.

vii. Al Welsheimer inquired if a mill and fill would work on Resort Pike from Intertown
to Deere Drive or Williams Road and Shank responded crushing it up and placing
geogrid in the swamp would be a better option to help strengthen it.

viii.  Wheaton discussed Cherry Lane and Shank responded the best solution would be
to tie in some drainage structures, put gravel on it and pave the road. There is not
enough room to place a turnaround in this area. Wheaton and Angileri believe
the property owners and Walloon Lake Conservancy would be willing to work the
road commission for enough land for a turnaround. Shank believes 75-100 feet is
required for a turnaround but he doesn’t want to deter getting the road improved
for a turnaround. Shank believes 16 feet of pavement would be sufficient for this
road.

ix. Al Welsheimer discussed some spots failing on Parkview Drive and Countryside
Lane.

Maintenance Topics — No discussion.
Other Topics:

i Public Act 33, regarding setting speed limits, had a new clause added in 2024.
Section 5 of MCL 257.628 states a speed limit may be set below the 85™ percentile
if an engineering and safety study demonstrates a situation with hazards to public
safety; but must not be set below the 50" percentile. The township submits a
formal request to the road commission and reimbursement for the required
engineering and safety study would be the responsibility of the requesting party.
Michigan State Police are still responsible for giving final approval on the change.

Resort Township officials left the meeting at 6:30 p.m.

5. Pleasantview Township officials were welcomed at 6:30 p.m. with introduction of attendees.

a.

Road Report — Distributed in August. Kuligowski offered comments on the four miles of
road that need attention and how to choose what can get done.
Road Project Discussion — Shank clarified the process for project development. Once he

receives a project request with the township’s budgeted amount to spend, an estimate is
built and sent to the township with a contract. If the contract is approved, the project is put
out for bids. If the bids come in under estimate, the project is recommended for approval. If
the bids come in over estimate, the township is contacted for approval.

Review of 2024 Projects — Three seal coat projects turned out well. There was a discussion
on the product used and life of the treatment.

2025 Planned Projects — Shank discussed how bidding the projects out early can get a lower
price and better schedule. Kuligowski stated the township has decided to hold at this time
and will know more next fiscal year. Beydoun inquired how long the road commission can
hold a contract or estimate and Shank responded the estimate is good for a year but once it
is bid on, there is a 30-day hold on the price to get the project scheduled. Kuligowski

Page 4 of 8






